
Chelan County Planning Commission 
 Chair: Jesse Redell        Vice Chair: Cherie Warren

       Commissioners District 1: Vicki Malloy, Ryan Kelso, James Wiggs 
 Commissioners District 2: Cherié Warren, Mike Sines, Christopher Dye 
 Commissioners District 3: David Donovick, Jesse Redell, Doug England 

Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, September 12, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
Chelan County Community Development 
400 Douglas Street, Wenatchee, WA 
Or via Zoom- details listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87596099755?pwd=ct6bkqwbNjQaLavfiWdk8vhIKBf4GC.1 

Meeting ID: 875 9609 9755 

Passcode: 792574 

Meeting to Order 

I. Administrative

A. Review/Approval of Minutes from August 28, 2024 Planning Commission
Meetings

II. Public Comment Period
A. Comment for any matters not identified on the agenda (limit 2 minutes

per person)

III. Old Business
A. Workshop - ZTA 24-328 - Proposed amendments to the Short-

Term Rental provision in the Chelan County Code, specifically
Section 11.88.290.

IV. New Business

V. Discussion, at the Chair’s discretion

VI. Adjournment *Meeting will go no longer than 8:30 PM.*



Materials available on the Community Development website 
 
 

 
Any person may join this meeting via Zoom Video conference, of which the link is provided on 
the Chelan County Website. A Copy of the Agenda may be reviewed online 
https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission  
 
Chelan County has been recording Planning Commission meetings which will continue to be 
accessible on the Community Development Planning Commission web page shortly after the 
meeting takes place.  

 
Next Regular Meeting 

September 25, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
 

* All P lanning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. 
 

https://www.co.chelan.wa.us/community-development/pages/planning-commission


Contents 

Agenda ………………………………………………. Pg. 1 - 2 

Contents ……………………………………………… Pg. 3 

July 24th Minutes ……………………………………. Pg. 4 – 26 

Staff Report & attachments…………………………Pg. 27 – 185 

 

  



CHELAN COUNTY 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 6:30 PM 

COMMISSIONER PRESENT/ABSENT 

STAFF PRESENT 
Jessica Thompson, Permit Clerk 
Kirsten Ryles, CD Assistant Director 
Deanna Walter CD Director 

PUBLIC PRESENT: Sean Lynn, Kate Redell 

PUBLIC PRESENT VIA ZOOM:  Ted Hanika, Sean’s AI notetaker, Michelle-vortex, Jerri Barkley, Art 
Alley, Dave Bartholomew, Matthew Oaks, Jim Wright(x2), Chiwawa Communities Association, 
Peggy, Patthirlby, Krivil Skinnarland, Chase K. Lak, Marypat.barton@gmail.com, Samsung sm-
s911u, Roger&Rita, Reilly, Danbe, Hans, Brian Patterson, Chris Wille, William May, Mike 
Cushman, Dan B, Cindy, Jerry Isenhart, Leesa, Mimi Reid, David Odom, Tom Martin, Lorie 
Witmer, Brittany, Katie Hanson, Sgg, Maureen, Robert C, Sean Reid, Jeff Judy, L A, Joni, Betsy 
Steele, Heather Tromp, William Cagle, Richard Nicklas, Jake, Brad, I media, Dorothy Johnston, 
KateQuinn, Kristine Peterson, Brad S, Jonathan Strahl, Andy Day-rc3, 12066180697, Stephanie, 
Homeowner, Jessica Sellers, Jesse NWPMC, Mike Kirk, Carissa Reid and Bobby. 

Chelan County Planning Commission Date: August 28, 2024 
Chelan County Community Development 
Called to Order: 6:30 PM 
400 Douglas St., Suite 201 
Wenatchee, WA 98801 

Vicki Malloy  Present 
Doug Englund  Present- zoom 
Ryan Kelso  Present 
Cherie Warren  Present 
Mike Sines Present 

James Wiggs  Present 
Christopher Dye Present 
Jesse Redell  Present 
David Donovick Present - zoom 



Minutes: 

Chairman Jesse Redell starts the meeting and takes roll. 

He proceeds, asking the commissioners if they had read the minutes from the July 
24, 2024, meeting. 

Hearing no corrections, changes or additions, the minutes were approved.  

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Public Testimony  
• Sean Lynn – Attachment A of minutes
• Stellen Giffin

Old Business: 

None 

New Business 

ZTA 24-328 - Proposed amendments to the Short-Term Rental provision in the Chelan 
County Code, specifically Section 11.88.290. 

Community Development Director Deanna Walter presents the proposed changes from the 
August 28th 2024 agenda packet.  

Continued discussion between commissioners and Mrs. Walter on the specific STR code 
change proposals for Title 11. 

Public Testimony 
• Marypat.barton@gmail.com

• Jesse Kensington



• Tom Martin

• Brian Patterson

• Lorie Witmer

• Nicole Wright

• Sean Reid

• David Odom

• Chiwawa Communities Association – Matthew Oaks

• Sean Lynn

• Jesse NWPMC Patrick Dugan

• Chase K. Lak

• Roger & Rita Thomas

Public Testimony - closed 

Commissioner Warren asked for more details about the issue that was brought up and led to 
the modifications to the STR code. 

Public Hearing Closed 

Workshop for ZTA 24-328 - Proposed amendments to the Short-Term Rental provision in the 
Chelan County Code, specifically Section 11.88.290. 

Commissioners review and discuss thoughts on the proposed changes for Title 11. 

Workshop continued to September 12th at 6:30 p.m. 

Discussion at the Chair’s Discretion: 
None 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting Adjourned at 8:37 pm. 



Next Planning Commission Meeting to be held on September 
12, 2024, at 6:30 pm 

All Planning Commission meetings and hearings are open 
to the public





Economic Impact of 

Short Term Rental Properties 

in Unincorporated Chelan County 

September, 2020 

Michael Luis 
& Associates 

P.O. Box 15 I Medino, Washington 98039 I 206-295-7123 

Attachment A



Economic Impact of Short Term Rental Properties in Unincorporated Chelan County 

Economic Impact of Short Term Rental Properties in 

Unincorporated Chelan County 

Summary of Findings 

This paper provides an overview of the economic impact of short term rentals (ST Rs) on Chelan County. 

It is focused on rentals located in the unincorporated parts of Chelan County, although the impacts are 

mostly seen on a countywide basis. Key findings include: 

• Between September 1, 2019 and August 31, 2020, 1.714 properties in unincorporated Chelan

County that were listed by Airbnb, VRBO and/or HomeAway, had at least one night of paid

visitor activity.

• Rental rates across the unincorporated areas averaged $362 per day. The highest average rates

were in the areas adjacent to the city of Chelan, at $491 per night, and the lowest rates were

adjacent to Cashmere, at $133 per night.

• The average STR was rented out for 94 nights in the past year, and the owner earned an average

of about $34,000 in gross rental income.

• The patron of the average STR spent an additional $560 per party per day, with $235 spent on

food and beverage services, $101 spent on recreation and $224 spent on retail.

• Patrons in the Chelan and Manson unincorporated areas were estimated to have spent over

$1,200 per night in addition to their STR rental fees.

• STRs in unincorporated areas generated a total of about $108 million in direct economic activity.

and another $45 million in indirect activity.

• STRs generated about $42 million in wages and supported over 1,400 jobs.

• Spending by patrons of STRs in unincorporated areas generated nearly $820,000 in general sales

taxes for Chelan County, which is about 10 percent of total general sales tax collections. That

spending a:sv geneiated about $GO�,OCO each for the two-county transit agency· and fer a group

of smaller agencies that collect sales tax.

• Rental fees for STRs in unincorporated areas generated $2.3 million in lodging taxes, which are

used to enhance the visitor industry across the county.

Michael Luis & Associates 1 Page 1 



Introduction 

Economic Impact of Short Term Rental Properties in Unincorporated Chelan County 

This paper provides an overview of the economic impact of short term rentals (STRs) on Chelan County. 

It is focused on rentals located in the unincorporated parts of Chelan County, although the impacts are 

mostly seen on a countywide basis. Following the data and methodological sections, the paper covers 

four areas. 

STR activity. The scope of STR activity is described for both unincorporated and incorporated areas. 

This is based on data collected from listings by Airbnb, VRBO and HomeAway. The data covers at 

least 90 percent of STR properties. 

Visitor spending. Estimates are provided for spending by visitors who have rented STRs in 

unincorporated Chelan County. Spending estimates are provided for (a) food and beverage services; 

(b) entertainment and recreation activities; (c) retail.

Economic impact analysis. The STR rental activity and visitor spending data are analyzed to derive 

estimates for total economic impact of STRs located in unincorporated areas. The impacts are 

countywide, and cover total economic output, labor income and job generation that result from the 

STR activity in unincorporated areas. 

Tax impact analysis. Estimates are provided for the sales tax and lodging taxes generated by STR 

activity in unincorporated areas that are collected by Chelan County and several agencies that have 

countywide taxing authority. 

Economic impact analyses are based on a number of assumptions, each of which can have a substantial 

effect on the final estimates. Every effort has been made to use conservative assumptions, so it is likely 

that the estimates provided here form a lower bound for the actual impacts. 

Geographic Scope 

This report estimates the economic impact of short term vacation rentals that are located in 

unincorporated areas of Chelan County. Geographic scope is as follows: 

Property counts and activity measures 

The 2,639 properties included in the report all had revenue from at least one visitor-night from 

September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020. Figure 1 lists basic data for these properties by eight 

market areas. Cities lie within five of these market areas, and properties are broken out by city and 

unincorporated areas. 

Visitor spending 

Visitor spending on lodging and other expenses is estimated only for properties located in 

unincorporated areas. 

Economic impact 

The total economic impact of the spending by visitors renting properties in unincorporated areas is 

estimated for the entire county. 

Michael Luis & Associates I Page 2 

































Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 1 
 

 

TO: Chelan County Planning Commission 

FROM: Chelan County Community Development 

HEARING DATE: August 28, 2024 

FILE NUMBERS: PL 24-325 (Zoning Text Amendment)  

 2024 Docket 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The Planning Commission is being asked to review, consider, and make a recommendation to the Board 
of Chelan County Commissioners to approve, approve in part, or deny adoption of the proposed Zoning 
Code amendments relating to Short-term rentals, 11.88.290. Suggested Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law, which may be modified, are included in this staff report.  

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Applicant  Chelan County 
Planning Commission Hearing August 28, 2024 
Planning Commission Notice of 
Hearing Published August 17, 2024 

60-day State Agency Review Initiated: August 14, 2024 
SEPA Determination August 14, 2024 
Previous Workflow  
Board of County Commissioners 
Workshop: March 31, 2020 

Planning Commission Workshops: April 22, May 13, May 27, June 3, 2020 
Planning Commission Hearing 
Published on: June 6, 2020   

Planning Commission Hearing on: June 27, 2020  
Planning Commission Deliberations: July 24, July 9, 2020   
Board of County Commissioners 
Study Sessions: July 21, August 4, 2020 

Board of County Commissioners-- 
REMAND to Planning Commission: August 24, 2020 



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 2 
 

Planning Commission Hearing 
Published on: August 27, 2020 

Planning Commission Hearing on: September 9, 2020 
Planning Commission Deliberations: September 23, and October 15, 2020 (Special notice 

October 3, 2020) 
60-day State agency review: May 14, 2020 and updated November 24, 2020 and July 

27, 2021  
Board of County Commissioners 
Study Sessions: 

October 28, November 3, November 10, November, 16, 
November 24, December 1, December 8, 2020 

Board of County Commissioners 
Hearing Published on: December 8, 2020 

Board of County Commissioners 
Hearings on: December 22, 2020 

Board of County Commissioners 
Deliberations: 

December 29, 2020, Hearing continued for at least 90 days 
while a Task Force was created. 

Taskforce created, recommendation 
to Board of County Commissioners 
presented: 

May 11, 2021 

Board of County Commissioners 
Study Sessions: June 1, June 7, June 14, June 15, June 22, 2021 

Board of County Commissioners 
Hearing Published on: June 15, 2021 

Board of County Commissioners 
Hearing on: June 29, 2021 

Board of County Commissioners 
Deliberations: July 13, July 27, 2021 

Short term rental code adopted  July 27, 2021 
Board of County Commissioners 
Amendment Workshop: December 11, 2023 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION  

The Board of County Commissioners has requested review of the existing Short-Term Rental code 
section (11.88.290) of the Chelan County Code, and has identified several areas for potential 
development regulation text amendments for short-term rentals, to make modifications and provide 
regulatory support and clarification.  

The proposals were analyzed based on information provided and within existing County resources. 
Applications for zoning code text amendments must be weighed by their individual and collective 
impacts. Additionally, agency and public comment play a role in understanding potential impacts to 
surrounding land uses, impacts to rural character, and how the amendment may serve the general 
public’s interest. Proposed changes provided in Attachment 1. 

SEPA ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEWA Determination of Non-Significance was issued under WAC 197-11-340 
for PL 24-325 on August 14, 2024 (Attachment 2). The lead agency for this proposal has determined that 



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 3 
 

it does not have a probable significant adverse impact on the environment. An Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). The decision was made after a review of a 
completed environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead agency. 

60-Day Notice:   

Sent to Department of Commerce August 14, 2024.  Letter of acknowledgement (Attachment 3). 

Agency Comments:  

None received to date.  

Public Comment:  

None received to date.  

REVIEW CRITERIA 

The approval, modification or denial of a development regulation amendment application shall be 
evaluated on, but not limited to, the following criteria pursuant to Chelan County Code Title 14, 
Development Permit Procedures and Administration: 

CCC 14.13.040, The approval, modification or denial of a development regulation amendment 
application shall be evaluated on, but not limited to, the following criteria: 

(1) The amendment is necessary to resolve a public land use issue or problem. 

(2) The amendment is consistent with goals of the Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW. 

(3) The amendment complies with or supports comprehensive plan goals and policies and/or county-
wide planning policies. 

(4) The proposed amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term 
commercial significance or critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 

(5) The amendment is based on sound land use planning practices and would further the general public 
health, safety and welfare. 

Transmittal of the proposed regulation amendments to the Department of Commerce was initiated 
August 14, 2024.  Department of Commerce shall be sent the proposed changes at least sixty calendar 
days prior to anticipated effective date of any adopted land use regulation.  Once (any) amendments are 
adopted by the Board of Chelan County Commissioners, Department of Commerce shall be notified 
within ten calendar days of adoption. 

Staff Analysis: 

The 14 goals of the Growth Management Act are:  

(1) Urban growth. Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and services 
exist or can be provided in an efficient manner. 

(2) Reduce sprawl. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-
density development. 



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 4 
 

(3) Transportation. Encourage efficient multimodal transportation systems that are based on regional 
priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 

(4) Housing. Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the population 
of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and encourage preservation 
of existing housing stock. 

(5) Economic development. Encourage economic development throughout the state that is consistent 
with adopted comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all citizens of this state, 
especially for unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, promote the retention and expansion of 
existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses, recognize regional differences impacting 
economic development opportunities, and encourage growth in areas experiencing insufficient 
economic growth, all within the capacities of the state's natural resources, public services, and public 
facilities. 

(6) Property rights. Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having 
been made. The property rights of landowners shall be protected from arbitrary and discriminatory 
actions. 

(7) Permits. Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a timely 
and fair manner to ensure predictability. 

(8) Natural resource industries. Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, including 
productive timber, agricultural, and fisheries industries. Encourage the conservation of productive forest 
lands and productive agricultural lands, and discourage incompatible uses. 

(9) Open space and recreation. Retain open space, enhance recreational opportunities, conserve fish 
and wildlife habitat, increase access to natural resource lands and water, and develop parks and 
recreation facilities. 

(10) Environment. Protect the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, including air and 
water quality, and the availability of water. 

(11) Citizen participation and coordination. Encourage the involvement of citizens in the planning 
process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts. 

(12) Public facilities and services. Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary to support 
development shall be adequate to serve the development at the time the development is available for 
occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels below locally established minimum 
standards. 

(13) Historic preservation. Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures that 
have historical or archaeological significance. 

(14) Shoreline Management, to manage shorelines wisely. 

The proposed amendments provide support implementation of Growth Management Act goals (4) 
Housing, (5) Economic development, (6) Property rights, (7) Permits, and (11) Citizen Participation and 
coordination. The short-term rental code balances Growth Management Act goals and requirements to 
locate growth in urban and rural areas in a manner that encourages the preservation of existing housing 



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 5 
 

stock, encourages the availability of affordable housing, allows for economic development consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan, protects rural character, ensures appropriate public services, protects 
environmental quality, and provides for fair/timely permits. Zones that limit short-term rentals continue 
to provide a range of reasonable uses consistent with the district intents such as long-term residential 
uses, compatible home occupations, and others.  (See RCW 36.70A.020 and 070) 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

Chelan County conducts an annual concurrent review of proposals to amend the Comprehensive Plan. 
The Plan represents the long-term vision for future land uses and development. Applicants must 
demonstrate the merits of the requested change as being consistent with adopted goals and policies.  

 The following Comprehensive Plan goals and policies are relevant to the request:  

Goal LU 1: Residential designations shall provide for an adequate supply of land to accommodate the 
housing needs and strategies outlined by the comprehensive plan. Implementation regulations shall 
provide for a variety of residential opportunities to serve a full range of income levels.  

Policy LU 1.2: Protect residential neighborhoods from impacts associated with incompatible land 
uses through application of development standards and permit conditioning.  

Goal RE 2: Maintain natural environment features that support and enhance natural resource-based 
economic activities, wildlife habitats, traditional rural lifestyles, outdoor recreation, and open space.  

Policy RE 2.2: Rural development should not preclude use of rural lands for agriculture and 
timber production and should avoid or mitigate impacts on existing agriculture or timber 
operations.   

Policy RE 2.3: Ensure that rural development (residential, commercial and industrial) near 
designated resource lands occurs in a manner that minimizes potential conflicts and reduces 
conversion of farm and forest land to non-resource uses. Develop mitigating measures to 
provide adequate protection against potential conflicts  

Goal ED 1: Encourage efforts to diversify the existing economic base to focus on long-term sustainable 
economic development throughout the County  

Policy ED 1.1: Seek to attract businesses and industries that complement and build upon existing 
business and industry.  

Policy ED 1.2: Incentivize development that creates local re-investment funds and provides jobs 
in the local community.  

Goal ED 2: Encourage the retention and growth of recreational and tourist-based industries consistent 
with the comprehensive plan.  

Policy ED 2.1: Promote local tourism activities by developing brochures and media 
advertisements, and supporting local and self-contained events  

Goal ED 4: Local economic development efforts should promote the advantages of working and living in 
Chelan County, such as availability of work, job security and stability, access to recreational and cultural 
activities, educational opportunities, quality health care, and affordable housing.  



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 6 
 

Policy ED 4.2: Encourage economic development efforts that invite broad community 
participation and address the needs, concerns, rights and resources of a diversity of cultural 
groups.  

Goal ED 6: Establish a regulatory climate favorable for economic development.  

Policy ED 6.2: Support development of tourism and recreational uses on both public and private 
lands.  

FINDINGS OF FACT 
1. Chelan County adopted Title 14, Development Permit Procedures and Administration outlining 

provisions relating to the amendment of Development Regulation Text Amendments of Title 11 
consistent with RCW 36.70A. The County followed the procedures required for amendment of 
the Development Regulations Text Amendments.  

2. RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the provisions of the 
adopted County-Wide Planning Policies.  

3. The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act, and WAC 197-11, SEPA 
Rules, have been satisfied. To comply with the requirements of the State Environmental Policy 
Act for environmental review of a non-project action, the County, as lead agency issued a 
Determination of Non-significance on August 14, 2024.  

4. The required State agency review with the Department of Commerce (COM) and other State 
agencies initiated on August 14, 2024, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106.  

5. A request for amendment to Chelan County Code was made by Chelan County; to provide policy 
and regulatory support to amend the language of the short-term rental code, 11.88.290. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

1 The amendments to the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan are consistent with the 
requirements of the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive 
Plan and County-Wide Planning Policies.  

2. The amendments are necessary to address a public land use issue or problem.  

3. The amendments do not adversely affect designated resource lands of long-term commercial 
significance or designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated.  

4. Reviewing agencies and the general public are being given an opportunity to comment on the 
proposed amendments.  

5. The amendments are consistent with Chelan County Code Title 14 Development Permit 
Procedures and Administration.   

6. The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act and WAC 197-11 SEPA 
Rules have been satisfied.  

7. The adoption of these amendments is in the best interest of the public and furthers the health, 
safety, and welfare of the citizens of Chelan County. 

 



Staff Report- 2024 STR Development Regulation Text Amendment| 7 
 

ATTACHMENTS  

1. 11.88.290 STR Code Change Proposals 
2. SEPA Determination of Non-Significance, dated August 14, 2024 
3. 60-day Review Acknowledgment Letter from WA Dept. of Commerce, dated August 14, 2024 
4. Agency and Public Comments (none at time of staff report issuance) 



11.88.290 Short-term rental regulations. 

(1) Purpose.

(A) Short-term rental use is a commercial use. Where excess rental units exist in residential
communities, it has been shown to be detrimental to the affordable residential housing inventory
and adversely affect the residential character of those neighborhoods.

(B) The purpose of this section is to establish regulations for the operation of short-term rentals
as defined in Chapter 14.98, within the unincorporated portions of Chelan County, except short-
term rental properties within the Stehekin Valley area portion of Chelan County. This chapter
also establishes a short-term rental land use permit.

(i) Stehekin Valley Short-Term Rental Code Development. Stehekin Valley is a remote portion
of Chelan County accessible by only horse, foot, water, and air travel. It also lacks modern
communication and power infrastructure and has other comprehensive planning, infrastructure,
economic, natural resource, and other land ownership and land use considerations. Because of
these and other considerations, an additional public process will be needed to specifically
develop regulations applicable to short-term rentals in this location. That code will be developed
at a later date.

(C) The provisions of this chapter are necessary to promote the public health and safety by
protecting year-round residents’ enjoyment of their homes and neighborhoods by minimizing the
nuisance impact of short-term rentals on adjacent residences and by minimizing the detrimental
impact of excessive short-term rentals on the affordable housing supply.

(D) The provisions of this chapter are necessary for consistency with the goals and policies of the
Chelan County comprehensive plan including but not limited to:

(i) Land use element considerations of commercial and residential development that provide
sustainable economic opportunity while limiting localized sprawl, maintaining community
character, and providing employment opportunities for residents, and anticipating future needs;

(ii) Housing element goals and policies including, but not limited to, appropriate placement of
vacation rentals to avoid impacting neighborhood character and housing stock, accessibility to
affordable housing for all residents, providing for a variety of residential housing types and
densities, and supporting regulatory changes that promote affordable housing options in all
locations in the county;

(iii) Rural element goals and policies including, but not limited to, maintaining natural
environment features that support natural resource-based economic activities including small
scale recreation and tourist uses, wildlife habitats, traditional rural lifestyles, outdoor recreation,
and open space.

Attachment A

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1498.html#14.98


(2) Type, Number, and Location.

(A) Type. Short-term rentals are distinguished in three tiers.

(i) Tier 1. Owner/Manager/Operator-occupied (as defined in 14.98.1363) short-term rentals
where either (a) rooms are rented and the owner/manager/operator (to include title holders,
corporate officers, and contract purchasers) is personally present at the dwelling during the rental
period, or (b) the short-term rental is located within the same parcel as the
owner/manager/operator ’s principal residence and the owner/manager/operator is personally
present at the dwelling during the rental period, or (c) the entire dwelling is rented no more than
fifteen total days in a calendar year; provided, that an on-site qualified person is there during the
owner/manager/operator’s absence. Portions of calendar days shall be counted as full days.

(ii) Tier 2. Short-term rentals at a dwelling that is not owner occupied or Tier 3 short-term rental.

(iii) Tier 3. Short-term rentals may be either non-owner occupied, or owner occupied, and exceed
occupancy limits applicable to Tier 1 and Tier 2 units as identified in subsection (3) of this
section. No short-term rental may operate as a Tier 3 short-term rental without meeting all Tier 3
provisions as applicable to their property under the requirements found within this chapter.

(iv) Existing nonconforming short-term rentals must comply with the provisions of subsection
(3)(B) of this section.

(B) Tiered Permits and Numbers Allowed.

(i) Tier 1. New Short-term rentals are allowed where permitted per subsection (2)(C) of this
section.

(ii) Tier 2 and Tier 3.

(a) New Tier 2 and 3 short-term rentals cannot be located where short-term rentals make up more
than the maximum share of the total housing stock in residential zoning districts listed in the
table below. This is the maximum share of short-term rentals in residential zones within Zip
Codes, Zip Code subareas, or within urban growth areas where the use is expressly allowed.
Leavenworth subareas are identified based on the boundaries in subsection (2)(B)(ii)(b) of this
section. If the share equals or exceeds this level, no new short-term rentals are allowed until the
total number falls below this maximum limit.



Maximum Share of Short-Term Rentals- 
REVISIT/REASSESS ALL CAP NUMBERS 

Area Name of 
Area 

Maximum 
Share of 
Short-
Term 

Rentals* 
Zip Code 98826 Leavenworth 6% 
Subarea 1 Lake 

Wenatchee 
6% 

Subarea 2 Plain 6% 
Subarea 3 Leavenworth 6% 
Other Zip Codes Each 

individually 
6% 

Urban Growth Area Manson 9%  6% 
Urban Growth Area Peshastin 0% 
City Assigned 
Unincorporated 
Urban Growth Areas 

Each 
individually 

6% 

*    Maximum percent share of short-term rentals in residential zones as part of total housing 
stock. 

(b) Leavenworth subareas are a subset of Zip Code 98826, mapped as follows: 



Leavenworth Subareas Map—Portions of Zip Code 98826

(c) To calculate the maximum share of short-term rentals in subsection (2)(B)(ii)(a) of this
section, total dwelling units must be determined based on the latest annual count of total housing
units by the State of Washington Office of Financial Management, or another state or county
agency that tracks Chelan County housing inventory. Short-term rental percentages must be



determined at the time the number of allowed short-term rentals is determined per subsection (4) 
of this section. 

(d) Tier 2 and Tier 3 short-term rentals in the following zones are not subject to the maximum 
cap in subsection (2)(B)(ii)(a) of this section: rural commercial zoned districts, Manson and 
Peshastin urban growth areas’ commercially zoned districts, planned unit developments existing 
on the date of adoption of this chapter with recorded plat notes expressly permitting short-term 
rentals, or master planned resorts. 

(e) Share calculations for cities and urban growth areas are calculated separately and 
independently from other areas within the same Zip Code or a designated subarea of a Zip Code, 
and one calculation does not affect the maximum allowed share of short-term rentals for the 
other. 

(f) Within Leavenworth subareas to determine if a new Tier 2 or Tier 3 short-term rental is 
allowed, first the overall Zip Code share must be met and second the subarea Zip Code share 
must be met. 

(iii) Existing nonconforming short-term rentals of any tier level are not subject to the limitations 
in this subsection (2)(B) provided they comply with all the provisions of subsection (2)(E) of this 
section. 

(C) Zones Allowed. In order to operate, short-term rentals may be allowed pursuant to: 

(i) Section 11.04.020 applicable to all rural and resource designations, except as limited in 
subsection (2)(B) of this section. 

(ii) Section 11.22.030 applicable to the Peshastin urban growth area, except as limited in 
subsection (2)(B) of this section. 

(iii) Section 11.23.030 applicable to the Manson urban growth area, except as limited in 
subsection (2)(B) of this section. 

(iv) The board of Chelan County commissioners adopts the cities of Cashmere, Chelan, Entiat, 
Leavenworth, and Wenatchee land use regulations, development standards and land use 
designations, as they apply to short-term or vacation rentals of fewer than thirty consecutive 
nights or days, within the county adopted unincorporated urban growth area respecting each city 
as it is now or is hereafter amended for the cities of Cashmere, Chelan, Entiat, Leavenworth, and 
Wenatchee; provided, that any city regulation requiring acquisition of a business license is not 
adopted nor incorporated as a county regulation and that instead a conditional use permit may be 
required, and the county’s review procedures in this section must control. 

(a) Upon the date of the adoption of this code on September 27, 2021, any existing short-term 
rentals within the exterior boundaries of any city’s designated urban growth area (UGA) are 
required to have been in full legal compliance with any existing city codes adopted through prior 
resolution by the county as they applied to short-term rental uses within that UGA. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1104.html#11.04.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1122.html#11.22.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1123.html#11.23.030


(1) If a short-term rental use is operating in violation of the existing county-adopted city codes 
for that UGA the rental must immediately cease all operation of that use on the date of adoption 
of this chapter. A property operating in violation of existing city UGA land use regulations has 
no legal existing nonconforming status as a short-term rental. 

(b) All existing nonconformance claims within a UGA will be subject to joint review by the 
county and the affected city. 

(c) New short-term rental applicants will be required to comply with the most current city 
regulations for short-term rental use for each city UGA, which are herein adopted and 
incorporated under subsection (2)(C)(iv) of this section upon adoption of this code chapter, 
including if any UGA code prohibits new or continued existing short-term rentals in those zones. 

(v) Existing nonconforming short-term rentals of any tier level are not subject to the limitations 
in this subsection (2)(C) provided they comply with all the provisions of subsection (2)(E) of this 
section and any other applicable provisions 

(vi) Applications for a new Tier 3 short-term rental permit required by a district use chart in 
Chapter 11.04 to have a conditional use permit (CUP) shall have the CUP processed consistent 
with Chapters 11.93 and 14.10, and shall have the use conditioned for approval based upon the 
applicable requirements contained within this section. A Tier 3 short-term rental CUP is annually 
renewable and administratively reviewed under the provisions of subsection (4) of this section, 
provided the permit is nontransferable under the restrictions contained within subsection (4)(I) of 
this section. 

(D) Lot Size and Lot Location Standards. 

(i) Minimum lot sizes for new conforming short-term rentals set forth in this subsection are the 
minimum necessary and shall not be subject to reduction pursuant to Chapter 11.95, Variances, 
Chapter 11.97, Nonconforming Lots, Structures, and Uses, Chapter 11.98, Reasonable Use 
Regulations, nor subject to administrative modification. The following minimum lot sizes shall 
be required to establish a Tier 2 or Tier 3 short-term rental in zoning districts where short-term 
rentals are permitted or conditionally permitted: 

Minimum Lot Area (Acres) Required to 
Accommodate New Short-Term Rental     

Zone Tier 2 Tier 3 
AC 10 Not Allowed 
RR20 10 10 
RR10 10 10 
RR5 5 5 
RR2.5 2.5 Not allowed 
RRR 0.275 Not allowed 
RW 0.275 Not allowed 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1104.html#11.04
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1193.html#11.93
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1410.html#14.10
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1195.html#11.95
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1197.html#11.97
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1198.html#11.98
Marcus Foster
Unclear to me what this comment means. There are STR uses under AC in the District Use Chart. 



Minimum Lot Area (Acres) Required to 
Accommodate New Short-Term Rental     

Zone Tier 2 Tier 3 
RV 0.275 Not allowed 

(ii) New conforming Tier 2 short-term rentals in all residential zones cited in this subsection 
(2)(D) and within the Manson UGA shall be located a minimum of two hundred feet apart as 
measured from all points of the existing short-term rental dwelling structures to proposed short-
term rental dwelling structures. This distance shall not be subject to reduction pursuant to 
Chapter 11.95, Variances, Chapter 11.97, Nonconforming Lots, Structures, and Uses, Chapter 
11.98, Reasonable Use Regulations, nor subject to administrative modification. 

(iii) Proposals for new conforming Tier 3 short-term rentals shall be located on sites with direct 
access off of functionally classified highways consistent with the Chelan County transportation 
element of the comprehensive plan. Access shall be consistent with Section 15.30.330. “Direct 
access” means either parcel frontage or driveway access from the classified highway right-of-
way. 

(iv) Existing nonconforming short-term rentals of any tier level are not subject to the limitations 
in this subsection (2)(D) provided they comply with all the provisions of subsection (2)(E) of this 
section. 

(E) Existing Short-Term Rentals. 

(i) A short-term rental use shall be considered lawfully established and existing and allowed to 
continue to operate as a legally nonconforming use only if the owner proves all the following: 

(a) That a location was actually, physically used for short-term rental purposes during the periods 
specified in subsections (2)(E)(i)(b) and (f) of this section. Proof of rental listing, and income 
generated is also required; and 

(b) That sales and lodging taxes required under Chapter 64.37 RCW were fully paid for all short-
term rental use between July 28, 2019, when Chapter 64.37 RCW was in effect, and August 25, 
2020; and 

(c) That the short-term rental meets all requirements of subsection (3) of this section within one 
year of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section; provided, that legally required 
health and safety provisions within subsection (3) of this section including garbage, consumer 
safety, fire safety and outdoor burning, and property management plan communications 
provisions are met within ninety days of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this 
section, except that in the Manson urban growth area, all provisions consistent with Section 
11.23.040 as it existed on August 25, 2020, shall be met on the effective date of the ordinance 
codified in this section; and 

(d) That the short-term rental operator has obtained the required land use permits within the time 
requirements in subsection (4) of this section; and 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1195.html#11.95
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1197.html#11.97
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1198.html#11.98
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco15/Chelco1530.html#15.30.330
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1123.html#11.23.040


(e) Liability insurance shall be obtained consistent with RCW 64.37.050 as of the effective date 
of the ordinance codified in this section (September 27, 2021) per subsection (3)(N) of this 
section; and 

(f) If located inside of the Manson urban growth area, documentary evidence that the short-term 
rental was properly registered as a vacation rental with Chelan County per Section 11.23.040 as 
of August 25, 2020, or that the short-term rental owner held a vacation rental permit in the 
Manson UGA as of July 28, 2019, or in 2020 prior to August 25, 2020. This documentary 
evidence also satisfies the requirements found in subsection (2)(E)(i)(a) of this section, provided 
failure to accurately represent and disclose a property’s short-term rental history is grounds for 
immediate permit denial or revocation, and loss of all existing nonconforming status. 

(g) Any property owner claiming existing nonconforming status as a short-term rental within any 
Zip Code, subarea, or urban growth area shall resolve any existing county code violations on the 
property as required under subsection (4)(A)(ii) of this section and shall have complied with all 
other relevant provisions of this section and apply for and have received an initial short-term 
rental administrative land use permit and all required conditional use permits under subsection 
(4) of this section by December 31, 2022, or by failing to do so shall waive all claim to having 
existing nonconforming status. 

(ii) Nonconforming Short-Term Rental Units Restricted Zones, or by Parcel Size, Numbers 
Allowable, or Rental Standards. 

(a) Except as provided in subsections (2)(E)(iii) and (iv) of this section, an existing short-term 
rental operating as of September 27, 2021, is considered nonconforming when one or more of the 
following conditions is met: 

(1) The cap of the Zip Code, Zip Code subarea, or urban growth area is exceeded in subsection 
(2)(B) of this section; or 

(2) A zone does not expressly allow new short-term rental units per subsection (2)(C) of this 
section and Sections 11.04.020, 11.22.030, and 11.23.030; or 

(3) The short-term rental is located on a parcel that does not meet the lot size and/or lot location 
standards of subsection (2)(D) of this section; or 

(4) The short-term rental does not comply with the operating standards of subsection (3) of this 
section. 

(b) Nonconforming short-term rental properties may only be changed, altered, extended, or 
enlarged in a manner requiring a permit issued under Chelan County codes if the activity does 
not increase nonconformance with this or any other chapters of applicable county codes, or to 
repair unexpected damage from a natural or human caused event provided the repair is that 
which is minimally required to maintain the former conditions of the rental as it existed prior to 
the damage. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37.050
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1123.html#11.23.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1104.html#11.04.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1122.html#11.22.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1123.html#11.23.030


(1) Any property that increases its nonconformance with this chapter without written permitted 
authorization of the department may be subject to immediate revocation of all short-term rental 
permits and shall lose any legally non-conforming status as a short-term rental. Appeal 
provisions within Chapter 14.12 and Title 16 apply. 

(c) If the nonconforming short-term rental cannot comply with criteria, grace period, and 
timelines in subsection (2)(E)(i) of this section, it must cease operating no later than one year 
from the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section (September 27, 2021) and any 
issued county permit to operate as a short-term rental immediately becomes null and void, 
subject to appeal under Chapter 14.12 and Title 16.  

(d) After expiration of the permit or revocation of the permit authorizing a nonconforming short-
term rental, no operator shall operate a short-term rental, subject to appeal under Chapter 14.12 
and Title 16. 

(e) Any short-term rental property that has an unresolved written notice of violation for short-
term rental use, received on or before August 25, 2020, or that operated as a short-term rental 
contrary to the August 25, 2020, Chelan County short-term rental moratorium Resolution 2020-
86, or subsequent rental moratorium Resolutions 2020-104 and 2021-20, or upon permit 
application is found to have an existing zoning, land use, or building permit violation, shall not 
be considered a legally nonconforming use as follows: 

(1) Moratorium Violation. Short-term rental properties in violation of the moratoria resolutions 
in this subsection (2)(E)(ii)(e) are not subject to a grace period for continued operation and must 
immediately cease all short-term rental uses of the property on the effective date of adoption of 
this code. 

(2) Unresolved Written Notices of Violation or Other Violations. An existing short-term rental 
property found to have existing zoning, land use, or building permit violation must resolve 
violations according to the time periods of subsection (4)(A)(ii) of this section. 

(3) Under either case in subsection (2)(E)(ii)(e)(1) or (2) of this section, the short-term rental 
property is subject to all provisions of Title 16; provided, that the appeal provisions of Chapter 
14.12 and Title 16 apply. 

(iii) Nonconforming Short-Term Rental Units in Manson UGA. Where a short-term rental is 
located in the Manson UGA, only those short-term rentals that were properly registered as a 
vacation rental and meet criteria in subsection (2)(E)(i) of this section shall be considered legal 
nonconforming according to Chapter 11.97, provided the short-term rental is allowed a grace 
period of operation in which to fully attain compliance with all current rental standards as 
provided in subsection (2)(E)(i) of this section. 

(iv) Nonconforming Short-Term Rental Units in Peshastin UGA. Existing nonconforming short-
term rental units of any tier within the residential zones in the Peshastin UGA are subject to the 
provisions of subsections (2)(E)(i) and (ii) of this section. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1197.html#11.97


(v) A nonconforming short-term rental can only become a conforming short-term rental by first 
providing an affidavit stating they wish to cease being a nonconforming short-term rental and 
surrender any existing rental use permits, and then applying for a new short-term rental permit 
subject to all the applicable requirements of this chapter, and other applicable Chelan County 
codes. 

(vi) The director may permit a property to operate as an existing nonconforming short-term 
rental where the applicant possesses and provides the department written communication, 
originating from authorized Chelan County community development personnel and written prior 
to August 25, 2020, that expressly states the short-term rental use of this specific property is an 
allowed use, and that the current use is in-fact operating and conforming within any parameters 
or limits expressly stated within that written communication, provided: 

(a) If any provision applicable to existing nonconforming short-term rentals within this chapter is 
not expressly exempted by the written communication referenced herein, the short-term rental is 
subject to all requirements for existing nonconforming short-term rentals as provided in this 
section, except as stated in subsection (2)(E)(vi)(b) of this section. 

(b) If the written communication referenced herein expressly permits and is authorized by septic 
permitting at the time of that written communication regarding limit on overnight and daytime 
occupancy, the property shall not be subject to the occupancy limits found within subsections 
(3)(B)(ii) and (iii) of this section. 

(c) Provisions of this subsection (2)(E)(vi) sunset on December 31, 2022. 

(3) Rental Standards Applicable to All Short-Term Rentals. 

(A) Primary or Accessory Residence. 

(i) Short-term rentals must be operated out of an owner’s primary dwelling or a legally 
established accessory dwelling unit. In no case, shall an owner or operator make available a 
recreational vehicle, tent, or other temporary or mobile unit for short-term rental. 

(ii) A short-term rental owner may operate only one short-term rental per parcel as designated on 
their permit application form, which may be in either the primary dwelling or the accessory 
dwelling unit but not both. The property owner (which includes title holders, corporate officers, 
and contract purchasers) shall occupy either the primary unit or the accessory unit as their 
permanent residence if property is permitted and used as a short-term rental. In the case a 
corporate entity owns the property, at least one principle officer must be a permanent resident of 
the property. Proof of residence includes, but is not limited to, government issued identification, 
utility bills, or other proof satisfactory to the Director.  If the short-term rental occurs in a 
multifamily dwelling the same owner may not rent more than one unit in the development. 

(iii) A short-term rental owner may exceed the limits placed on short-term rentals in subsection 
(3)(A)(ii) of this section on a parcel subject to the district zoning requirements of a rural 



commercial county zone or similar urban growth area commercial zone, provided the short-term 
rental must comply with the provisions of Section 11.04.020, 11.22.030, or 11.23.030. 

(B) Occupancy. 

(i) The number of rented or occupied bedrooms shall not exceed the number approved in relation 
to the on-site sewage system approved by the Chelan-Douglas health district, or strictly follow 
the requirements of any sewer district or other waste management provider that is being utilized 
by the rental. 

(a) All short-term rentals must meet and maintain this standard immediately, and this provision is 
not subject to any grace period. 

(b) Occupancy of bedrooms is limited to two persons per bedroom, including children not 
including children under 24 months of age.   

(ii) Tier 1 and Tier 2 Occupancy Limits. 

(a) Overnight Occupancy. The owner or operator must limit overnight occupancy to no more 
than two persons per bedroom, not to exceed: 

Tier 1: a total of eight persons including children owner(s) and any children over 24 months of 
age. 

Tier 2: a total of twelve persons including children over 24 months of age. 

Tier 3: a total of sixteen persons including any onsite owner(s) and children over 24 months of 
age. 

(b) Daytime Occupancy. 

Tier 1: At no time shall the total number of persons at a short-term rental exceed eight persons, 
including children over 24 months of age, but excluding the owner. 

Tier 2: At no time shall the total number of persons at a short-term rental exceed twelve persons, 
including children over 24 months of age. 

Tier 3: At no time shall the total number of persons at a short-term rental exceed sixteen persons, 
including children over 24 months of age, but excluding the owner, if one resides on the 
property. 

(c) For purposes of subsections (3)(B)(ii) and (iii) of this section occupancy after ten p.m. and 
before seven a.m. is considered overnight occupancy and all rental use must fully comply with 
the overnight occupancy limitations found within this section. 

(iii) Exceeding Daytime Occupancy Limits. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1104.html#11.04.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1122.html#11.22.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1123.html#11.23.030


(a) In order for any existing nonconforming or new short-term rental of any tier level to exceed 
total daytime occupancy limits contained in subsection (3)(B)(ii) of this section, or to host events 
such as weddings, gatherings, or retreats an operator must first obtain a conditional use permit 
and satisfy all the conditions of approval consistent with Section 11.93.315, Places of public and 
private assembly, before operation; provided, that the zone allows short-term rentals as a 
permitted, or conditionally permitted use and meets all other short-term rental requirements of 
this section; provided, that overnight occupancy is limited to the provisions of subsections 
(3)(B)(ii)(a) and (c) of this section. All other applicable criteria of Chapter 11.93 shall be met. 

(1) For new conforming short-term rentals to exceed the daytime occupancy under a conditional 
use permit, in addition to the requirements in this subsection (3)(B)(iii)(a), the operator must 
either take access from a classified highway consistent with subsection (2)(D)(iii) of this section, 
or be located in a master planned resort, or in a commercial zone. 

(b) Facilities exceeding overnight occupancies of sixteen persons are considered lodging 
facilities that must meet the requirements of that zone and use. 

(C) Parking. 

(i) Provide residential parking, not located within a setback and not within any recorded access 
easement, consistent with the provisions of Chapter 11.90.(this section and 11.90 should mirror 
one another) 

(ii) The number of vehicles allowed at the short-term rental must be limited to the number 
required per Section 11.90.060; this requirement must be included in the property management 
plan per subsection (3)(K) of this section; provided, that any short-term rental may exceed these 
limits for hosted events if a conditional use permit has been obtained and all conditions of 
approval including traffic and parking requirements have been satisfied consistent with Section 
11.93.315. Parking must be located on the same parcel of property as the STR. For purposes of 
this section, “vehicles” includes any boats, trailers, campers, personal watercraft, etc. 

(iii) Unlawful or unsafe parking by short-term rental tenants and guests, owner or operator joint 
liability if violation not abated. Qualified persons or owner or operators of short-term rental 
properties notified of unlawful or unsafe complaints related to their short-term rental tenants, or 
their guests are responsible to promptly abate the parking complaints emanating from their 
property for noncompliance with subsections (3)(C)(i) and (ii) of this section, or for parking on 
the property of a neighbor without express permission, or blocking the access to that neighboring 
driveway, or preventing their unobstructed use of that neighboring property. If the owner fails to 
cause the parking complaint to be abated within sixty minutes of notification of the complaint, he 
is subject to the enforcement penalties jointly and severally with the renter, or guest creating the 
parking violation under this chapter and Title 16. 

(iv) Repeat Violations. Two verified parking violations unabated within sixty minutes as 
provided in subsection (3)(C)(iii) of this section within six months on or adjacent to the same 
property may also be subject to additional penalties under Chapter 16.20, up to and including 
revocation of the short-term rental land use permits under Section 16.20.040. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1193.html#11.93.315
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1193.html#11.93
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1190.html#11.90
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1190.html#11.90.060
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco1193.html#11.93.315
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.040


(D) Garbage. Trash containers must be provided. Trash must be in proper containers on 
collection day. Trash must be managed in compliance with Chapter 4.04, Garbage. This 
requirement must be included in the property management plan per subsection (3)(K) of this 
section and good neighbor guidelines per subsection (3)(M) of this section. 

(E) Noise. 

(i) Short-term rentals must be operated in compliance with Chapter 7.35, Noise Control. This 
requirement must be included in the property management plan per subsection (3)(K) of this 
section. 

(ii) Public Disturbance Noise Complaints. Renters are subject to the provisions of Chapter 7.35. 
Owners or operators of short-term rental properties notified of complaints are responsible to 
promptly abate public disturbance noise complaints on their property. If the owner or operator 
fails to cause the noise to be abated within sixty minutes of notification of the complaint, he is 
subject to compliance with Chapter 7.35 and the enforcement penalties jointly and severally with 
the renter creating the public disturbance noise. 

(iii) Repeat Violations. Two verified public disturbance noise violations unabated within sixty 
minutes as provided in subsection (3)(E)(ii) of this section within six months of on the same 
property may also be subject to additional penalties under Chapter 16.20, up to and including 
revocation of the short-term rental land use permits under Section 16.20.040. 

(F) Trespass. 

(i) Owners or operators must provide rules in rental contracts restricting occupants from 
trespassing on neighboring private property and identify proper routes to public places such as 
easements to shorelines. Such trespass rules must be included in the property management plan 
in subsection (3)(K) of this section and good neighbor guidelines per subsection (3)(M) of this 
section. 

(ii) Trespass by Short-Term Rental Tenants and Guests, Owner or Operator Joint Liability. 
Qualified persons or owner or operators of short-term rental properties notified of trespassing 
complaints related to their short-term rental tenants, or their guests are responsible to promptly 
abate trespass complaints emanating from their property. If the owner or operator fails to cause 
the trespass to be abated within sixty minutes of notification of the complaint, he is subject to the 
enforcement penalties jointly and severally with the renter, or guests creating the trespass under 
Section 7.32.030 and Title 16. 

(iii) Repeat Violations. Two verified trespass violations unabated within sixty minutes as 
provided in subsection (3)(F)(ii) of this section within six months of on or adjacent to the same 
property may also be subject to additional penalties under Chapter 16.20, up to and including 
revocation of the short-term rental land use permits under Section 16.20.040. 

(G) Signs. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco04/Chelco0404.html#4.04
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0735.html#7.35
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0735.html#7.35
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0735.html#7.35
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0732.html#7.32.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.040


(i) All owners or operators must display and maintain the address of the residence so that it is
clearly visible from the street or access road in compliance with Section 10.20.520 requirements.
The rental must also display and maintain an additional sign outside identifying the property as
short-term rental and displaying the Chelan County short-term rental registration permit number
and central phone number of local contact/qualified person to be called if an issue needs
someone onsite within 60 minutes as required by the County. The sign must not exceed eight
square feet in area and if illuminated, must be indirectly illuminated, and letters and numbers
must at a minimum four inches in height. The sign must be all-weather, reflective, and
permanently set/posted.

(ii) Placement of the Sign.

(a) For short-term rental structures located fifty feet or less from the primary road, the sign text
shall be displayed on the side of the structure facing the road and shall be visible from the road
designated in the assigned address.

(b) For short-term rental structures located fifty feet or more from the primary road, or for
buildings not visible from the road, the sign text shall be posted inside the owner’s property line
at the access point to the road designated in the assigned address.

(iii) If the permanent contact information changes during the permit period, the new information
must be changed on the sign. Renewal applications must provide evidence of the sign.

(iv) The director may allow annual mailings to adjacent properties and an interior posted notice
for tenants in lieu of an exterior sign where a property’s size and visibility make an exterior sign
ineffective, or if for reason of improving security. The owner shall provide verification of
mailings and a copy of the notice with the annual permit renewal.

(H) Consumer Safety. All consumer safety requirements of RCW 64.37.030 must be met by the
owner or operator. Violations are subject to Title 16. Requirements must be included in the
property management plan in subsection (3)(K) of this section.

(I) Fire Safety and Outdoor Burning.

(i) Each owner or operator must include a fire protection plan within their property management
plan in subsection (3)(K) of this section to alert renters to respect firewise efforts on a property,
or to comply with travel or activity restrictions of Chapter 7.52, Fire Hazard Areas. The fire
protection plan shall demonstrate consistency with a Ready Set Go program or equivalent; this
includes, but is not limited to, restricting the use of fireworks, outdoor fires, open flame devices,
portable fireplaces, fire pits, chimeneas, or BBQ devices. All permanently installed outdoor
flame devices, as well as portable burning devices shall have the ability to be secured from use in
accordance with Chapter 7.52, Fire Hazard Areas, and these devices must be secured during all
periods of regulated burning restrictions banning the use of that device.

(ii) At least one 2A:10BC fire extinguisher, charged, maintained, and in serviceable condition
shall be prominently available in the common living space.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco10/Chelco1020.html#10.20.520
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0752.html#7.52
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco07/Chelco0752.html#7.52


(J) Qualified Person/Local Contact 

(i) The owner or operator must provide the name, telephone number, address, and email of a 
qualified person or their designee (which can be a person or company) who can be contacted 
concerning use of the property and/or complaints and can respond, personally or through a 
designee, to the property within sixty minutes to complaints related to the short-term rental 
consistent with the requirements of this section. The owner or operator must provide a valid 
telephone number where qualified person can reliably be reached twenty-four hours per day, 
every day the property is rented. 

(ii) Failure to have a qualified person available to respond when contacted, or a failure to abate 
any complaint regarding a rental code standard under this subsection (3) by the qualified person 
or owner or operator within sixty minutes is a violation under this subsection and subjects the 
owner or operator to the civil penalties provided in Section 16.20.030. 

(iii) Repeat Violations. A second subsequent violation within twelve months of the previous 
violation of failing to have a qualified person available, or failing to respond to a complaint once 
notified by the sheriff, county staff, or by any monitoring service employed by the county, or 
from a complainant (if verifiable) is grounds for revocation of the short-term rental permit under 
Section 16.20.040. 

(K) Property Management Plan. 

(i) Short-term rentals must maintain an up-to-date property management plan on file with the 
Chelan County community development department and be prominently displayed within the 
common living area portion of the rental. If changes/updates are made during the term of the 
permit, the Department must be provided the updated/changed information in the form of 
updated forms. The property management plan must include the following: 

(a) Provide a floor plan and site map clearly depicting the property boundaries of the short-term 
rental, and the escape route in case of an emergency. The plan must provide a map indicating if 
there is an easement that provides access to a shoreline and, if an easement or other lawful access 
exists, the boundaries of the easement or access must be clearly defined. If there is no lawful 
access, this fact must be indicated within the plan together with a warning not to trespass; 

(b) Provide the unified business identifier number, Chelan County short-term rental permit 
number, and the names and addresses of the property owner or operator; 

(c) Designate a qualified person and provide contact information consistent with subsection 
(3)(J) of this section; and 

(d) Provide information required for consumer safety per subsection (3)(H) of this section and 
RCW 64.37.030 and fire protection plan per subsection (3)(I) of this section. 

(e) All units must have an operable landline or voice over internet protocol (VOIP) telephone 
installed to aid in emergency response, and the dwelling recorded in “Rivercom” database. The 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37.030


address and phone number of the property and the contact phone number for the qualified person 
shall be prominently displayed near the phone. If land line or VOIP is not available at the site, 
the director may at his discretion allow the owner or operator of the short-term rental to use an 
alternative means of direct phone communication, as long as the communication device is fixed 
at the location and the phone number is not changed within the annual permitting period. This 
phone number shall be noted on the permit application and the property management plan which 
shall also include any special instructions and list any local emergency services calling numbers 
required for use of the communication device in an emergency. 

(1) Renter-owned or possessed mobile phones shall not be used in place of this requirement as 
they are not always usable in all areas, their batteries may deplete, or they may not be present 
with the phone at the rental for periods of time during occupancy. 

(f) The plan must identify the method by which the owner or operator will notify renters of 
emergency or temporary conditions such as burn bans. 

(g) The plan must specify the maximum number of guests and number of bedrooms. 

(h) The plan must include the maximum number of vehicles allowed, and a map with the 
designated parking space locations allocated for each vehicle. 

(i) The plan must be kept up to date at the time of the annual permit and include the annual 
permit number per subsection (3)(L) of this section. 

(j) The plan must include the good neighbor guidelines per subsection (3)(M) of this section. 

(L) Annual Permit Number. The owner or operator must include the Chelan County land use 
permit number for the short-term rental in all advertisements and ensure its prominent display on 
platforms and other forums for rental (AirBnB, VRBO, Craigslist, poster, etc.) and on marketing 
materials such as brochures and websites. 

(M) Good Neighbor Guidelines. Owners and operators must acknowledge receipt and review of 
a copy of the good neighbor guidelines. Owners and operators must provide evidence that the 
good neighbor guidelines have been effectively relayed to short-term rental tenants, by 
incorporating it into the property management plan, and rental contract, posting it online, 
providing it in a conspicuous place in the dwelling unit, or a similar method. 

(N) Liability Insurance. A short-term rental owner or operator must maintain primary liability 
insurance consistent with RCW 64.37.050. 

(O) Taxes. The owner or operator must comply with Chapter 6.30, and other local sales taxes 
and state hotel/motel/lodging and sales taxes in accordance with the Department of Revenue. 
Proof of paid sales tax and lodging tax must be provided annually at time of renewal. 

(4) Land Use Permits. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.37.050
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco06/Chelco0630.html#6.30


(A) Land Use Permit Required.

(i) On or after September 27, 2021, and except as provided in subsection (4)(D)(i) of this section,
no short-term rental owner or operator may advertise, offer, operate, rent, or otherwise make
available or allow any other person to make available for occupancy or use as a short-term rental
without a valid short-term rental administrative land use permit issued by the director or a
conditional use permit approved by the hearing examiner pursuant to this chapter and Chapter
14.10. All dwelling units on a single parcel shall be reviewed concurrently in the same
application, and the dwelling to be used as a short-term rental shall be clearly identified.

(ii) All uses on the property must fully comply with this title and the property may not have
existing unresolved Chelan County code permitting, land use, or other violations under Title 3,
11, 15, or 16 in order to be eligible to apply for an administrative short-term rental land use
permit or conditional use permit under this chapter. Existing properties claiming nonconforming
short-term rentals may be issued a provisional short-term rental permit and may be provided the
time of their respective grace period pursuant to subsection (2)(E)(i)(c) of this section, but no
later than December 31, 2022, to address all violations. No provisional or other short-term rental
land use permits shall be issued after that date until any violations are resolved. The director may
extend the timeframe for up to six additional months to obtain compliance upon a showing of a
good faith effort.

(B) Annual Renewal. Annual renewal of the short-term rental land use permit is required.

(i) The department shall by September 1st of each year, mail send a renewal reminder notice to
the permitted owner or operator, sent to the postal address or the email address on file reminding
of the renewal requirement of the rental permit requirement. The method of the reminder sent is
at the discretion of the Department. Reminders are a courtesy to short-term rental operators and
failure to receive a reminder does not relieve the owner of any duty under the Chelan County
Code, or act as a defense to any action by the County to enforce this section.

(ii) A permit expires on December 31st of each year, regardless of when it is issued.

(iii) All annual permitting fees are not pro-rated.

(iv) All permit renewal applications for permitting year 2023, and beyond, must be received
annually by October 31st of the preceding year.

(a) At their discretion the director may, upon showing of a hardship reason for applicant’s delay,
accept permit renewal applications received after October 31st but before December 31st of the
same year and may assess double the normal fees for permitting, Annual renewal applications
will be considered on time if received between September 1 – October 31 each year. Renewal
applications received between November 1 – November 30 will be considered late, and will pay
a late fee of $--- in addition to the renewal fee.  Renewal applications received between 
December 1 – December 31 will be considered late, and will pay a late fee of $--- in addition to 
the renewal fee. Late renewals will be processed, but provided the short-term rental may not 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1410.html#14.10
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco03/Chelco03.html#3
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco11/Chelco11.html#11
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco15/Chelco15.html#15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16


continue operation past December 31st until the permit application is approved and a permit 
issued, and renewal approval is not guaranteed. This applies to all permit tier levels. 

(b) Permit renewal applications received after December 31st will not be accepted, and the short-
term rental operating without obtaining a renewal must immediately cease operations onby
January 1st of the following year. The owner and property lose any vesting to continue operation
as a legally conforming or nonconforming short-term rental under this chapter. Expired short-
term rentals under this subsection are then subject to the housing cap provisions of subsection
(2)(B) of this section and must apply as a new short-term rental if all other provisions of this
section allow, and consistent with the applicable district use chart.

(C) Permit Applications.

(i) Short-term rental owners must apply for an administrative land use permit to establish
compliance with this code. This will include a Short Term Rental permit and, in some cases, an
additional land use permit. Fees consistent with Section 3.24.010 must be paid. Applicable fees
shall reflect costs for review, inspections, and permitting of different short-term rental tiers, and
inspections at the appropriate stage. All other permit costs apply. Fees are due at the time of
permit application.

(D) Application Acceptance and Evaluation.

(i) Existing Nonconforming Short-Term Rentals. Beginning on September 27, 2021, and by
December 31, 2021, all existing short-term rentals operating as of dates established in subsection
(2)(E) of this section and subject to the provisions of subsection (2)(E) of this section wishing to
operate as a short-term rental for the remainder of 2021 shall pay a fee equal to one-quarter of
the annual permit fee established for their tier per the table in Chapter 3.24, and register on a
department registration provisional self-certification form. This self-certification form serves as
the first provisional short-term rental permit application. Those owners and properties failing to
register within this time period shall not be considered as an existing and nonconforming short-
term rental use for 2021 under this section and shall forfeit any claim of continuing existing
nonconforming short-term rental use status for 2022 and beyond under this section, and any
short-term rental that occurred during this period is considered to have been in violation of this
chapter, subject to appeal provisions under Chapter 14.12 and Title 16.

(ii) Application for or issuance of any provisional short-term rental permit does not guarantee
future issuance of a short-term rental administrative land use permit under subsection (4) of this
section. The provisional permit is intended to be temporary and is only in effect while the
department reviews all permit applications for compliance with all Chelan County regulations,
including this chapter, for the 2021 and 2022 permit years before issuance or denial of issuance
of a short-term rental administrative land use permit. This single (4)(D)(ii) provision ceases to
exist on December 31, 2022.

(a) All existing nonconforming short-term rental owners wishing to continue short term rental
land use operation past the 2021 year registration for the 2022 calendar year shall apply for a
short term rental permit on a provisional self-certification form no later than December 31, 2021.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco03/Chelco0324.html#3.24.010
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco03/Chelco0324.html#3.24
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16


This self-certification form serves as the 2022 provisional short term rental permit application. 
The applicant may continue provisional operation until the review, found this subsection, has 
been completed and an administrative determination has been made, and the owner has been 
notified whether their short-term rental is in lawful compliance with this chapter so they may 
continue to operate in 2022. 

(iii) For urban growth areas or Zip Codes below the cap as of the date of permit application,
owners may apply for a new short-term rental application per subsection (4)(D)(v) of this
section.

(iv) By not later than June 30, 2022, the director shall upon review for accuracy, completeness,
and code compliance provisionally approve a Tier 1 short-term rental property, or any existing
nonconforming Tier 1, 2, or 3 short-term rental property as provided in subsection (2)(E) of this
section, for an initial short-term rental administrative land use permit subject to the owner
completing a self-certification form in subsection (4)(D)(i)(a) of this section; provided, that
inspections in subsection (4)(H) of this section are accomplished prior to the first renewal
thereafter; provided, that any owner who has been found to be ineligible for continued operation
under this chapter that has been notified by the department shall have thirty calendar days to
provide any correction to the information that led to that determination of ineligibility, if a
correction is possible, or cease all operation as a short-term rental. They must reapply for
permitting under all applicable provisions of this section, subject to appeal provisions under
Chapter 14.12 and Title 16.

(v) New Compliant Short-Term Rentals. Beginning on December 1, 2021 new compliant Tier 1,
Tier 2, and Tier 3 land use permit applicants may apply to obtain a new conforming short-term
rental permit pursuant to the provisions and limitations of subsection (2) of this section.

(a) New short-term rental applications are not allowed for 2021. Applications for 2022 new
compliant short-term rentals in urban growth areas or Zip Codes below the cap based upon
available data may apply for a short-term rental land use permit application starting December 1,
2021, and by no later than July 29, 2022, as provided herein. No new 2022 permit applications
will be accepted after July 29, 2022. Permit applications, or reservations for application
appointments, will be taken on a first-come, first-served basis at the community development
office starting at nine a.m. After the 2022 permitting year, permit applications for subsequent
years are only accepted on the published dates allowing permitsubmission. The number of permit
applications accepted shall not exceed the number of short-term rentals allowed per the
applicable housing cap within each Zip Code and urban growth area as provided in subsection
(2)(B) of this section. Once the limit on the number of applications for Tier 2 and Tier 3 short-
term rentals has been reached, the window of time for submission shall be closed for that year;
provided, that Tier 1 applications do not have a limit on the number of applications.

(b) The director shall annually by March 15th determine the share of short-term rentals to the
overall housing stock in each of the unincorporated Zip Codes and urban growth areas, and
accordingly schedule a permit application time window, to be held only once annually between
June 1st and July 31st, to allow new short-term rental applications for the following year in each

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1412.html#14.12
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16


Zip Code and urban growth area where the cap in subsection (2)(B) of this section is not 
exceeded. 

(c) A completed permit application does not guarantee that the applicant will receive a permit to
operate a short-term rental. Application acceptance only guarantees participation in the permit
application process and a review for subsequent permitting under the regulations in existence at
time of acceptance.

(d) An application must be deemed complete have all required information and the parcel must
be in compliance with all City/County/State codes before a permit is issued. Any applicant who
does not complete the required application forms, complete any required inspections or other
processes contained within this chapter, and fully submit any required supplemental information
or who within thirty calendar days of notification fails to correct any application documentation
submission deficiencies as requested by the department by any required deadlines, including
submitting a complete application for any required conditional use permits, or who upon
application review is found to have knowingly provided false information, or if the applicant or
property is found to be out of compliance with this or other titles of Chelan County land use or
development codes, is therefore ineligible for a short-term rental permit. The applicant shall not
receive any further processing of their application. Once denied, the applicant shall not be
eligible for rental permit application until such time as the owner can show compliance with
Chelan County regulations, and then must reapply to restart the process.

During the annual renewal review process, the Director reserves the right to update and correct 
permits which may include adjustments to occupancy, tier level, etc, if discrepancies are found. 

(vi) All application fees are nonrefundable.

(E) Term. A short-term rental land use permit must be issued for a period of one calendar year,
with its effective date running from the date the application is due as set forth in subsection
(4)(D) of this section and must be renewed annually by the owner or operator provided all
applicable standards of this section are met.

(F) Forms and Procedures. Applications for short-term rental land use permits must be on forms
provided by the county, demonstrating the application meets the standards required by this
section. Permit review procedures and appeals must be consistent with Title 14.

(G) Nonuse. All short-term rentals must operate under a current short-term rental land use permit
regardless of nonuse. If a property has not been rented in a twelve-month period, renewal of
short-term rental land use permit must still be met to maintain the validity of the permit and to
retain eligibility for renewal in immediately subsequent years.

(H) Fire, Safety, Health, Short-Term Rental Standards, and Building Codes Compliance, and
Inspections.

(i) Fire and Emergency Safety and Short-Term Rental Standards. Prior to approving the initial
short-term rental permit and prior to each renewal, the Fire Marshal’s Office or Community

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco14.html#14


Development personnel must perform a life-safety and applicable short-term rental or 
conditional land use permit standards inspection, except as provided under subsections (4)(H)(iii) 
and (iv) of this section. 

(ii) Wastewater. Each applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the director they have a
properly functioning and permitted on-site sewage system meeting applicable health district
permitting and standards for the occupancy. The wastewater system must, at all times of
occupancy, be maintained and operate as originally permitted.

(iii) The director may waive inspections under subsections (4)(H)(i) and (ii) of this section
associated with the initial short-term rental permit if the owner or operator provides a notarized
affidavit from the applicable fire district or fire marshal or Chelan-Douglas health district that the
short-term rental complies with applicable requirements in subsections (4)(H)(i) and (ii) of this
section.

(iv) After the unit is approved and permitted for rental, a completed self-certification checklist
for health and safety is required to be submitted by the owner with each annual short-term land
use permit renewal consistent with forms provided by the director.

(v) Owner Responsibility. It is the owner’s responsibility to ensure that the short-term rental is
and remains in substantial compliance with all applicable codes regarding fire, building and
safety, health and safety, and other relevant laws.

(vi) Owners applying for or receiving a valid short-term rental land use permit or a conditional
use permit for short-term rental or event venue use must allow the director or designee to inspect
or reinspect the property at reasonable times to determine initial compliance with subsections (3)
and (4)(H) of this section. If complaints are received, or evidence is encountered indicating
noncompliance with this chapter the department may reinspect the property at reasonable times.
Denial of entry for inspection is grounds for immediate permit denial or revocation of all permits
for short-term rental land use under this chapter pursuant to Section 16.20.040.

(I) A short-term rental permit for a code compliant short-term rental permitted according to
subsection (4)(D) of this section is only transferable to a new owner under the provisions below.

(i) With a conforming short-term rental the permit is not transferable, even in the event of death
or divorce of an owner.

(ii) A nonconforming short-term rental permitted according to the provisions of subsection (2)(E)
of this section is allowed to transfer the existing permitted nonconforming status and currently
issued operating permit to continue under a new owner one time within five years, except three
years within the Manson urban growth area, of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this
section (September 27, 2021) consistent with subsection (4)(I)(iii) of this section, and the new
owner may continue to operate under the existing short-term rental permit for the remainder of
the current registration year and renew permits and operate in subsequent years under the
permitting requirements applicable to the original owner; provided, that within thirty calendar
days of the property sale or transfer closing, the subject property’s new owner wishing to transfer

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco1620.html#16.20.040


the STR permit into their ownership has requested the transfer of the STR permit from STR Staff 
at the Department and provided all requested materials provided their contact name and 
registration information with to the Department. The new owner shall provide signage and 
notification consistent with subsection (3)(G) of this section. 

(iii) A transfer occurs when the property is sold transferred by a person or corporation entity, to 
another person or corporation entity, or when officers of corporations entities are changed to 
remove former officers and add new officers any officer or add any new officer or officers, 
except that a transfer does not occur when officers are changed due to death where title is held in 
survivorship with a spouse or a transfer on the owner’s death to benefit only a spouse or 
child(ren) for the lifetime of the spouse or child(ren). The survivor may not sell or transfer title, 
except that title may transfer among the survivors. A transfer also does not occur when due to 
divorce a former spouse’s name is removed from the deed or corporation.  

(iv) No transfers of the existing nonconforming short-term rental status may occur other than as 
provided in this subsection (4)(I), and the second owner of a lawful permit transferred must 
obtain all required short-term rental permits and meet all applicable requirements of this chapter 
for all subsequent years beyond the current issued permit. If the property is transferred again, or 
is not issued a short-term rental permit in any subsequent years after initial transfer under this 
subsection (4)(I), the property loses its legal nonconforming status that would have applied to the 
original owner had they not transferred ownership. 

(J) Approval Criteria. 

(i) To receive approval or renewal, an owner must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the director 
that all approval criteria listed below have been satisfied: 

(a) The short-term rental is located in a base or overlay zone that allows its use pursuant to this 
section. 

(b) The short-term rental is consistent with density, location, and occupancy limitations of this 
section. 

(c) The short-term rental is consistent with short-term rental standards of this section. 

(d) The short-term rental is consistent with all applicable health and safety requirements of this 
section. 

(e) The short-term rental is not the subject of current or outstanding code violations per Title 16. 

(f) The short-term rental is considered non-conforming and is in full compliance with subsection 
(2)(E) of this section. 

(g) The short-term rental has not been transferred in violation of subsection (4)(I) of this section. 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16


(K) Appeals of the denial or conditions of short-term rental land use permits or annual renewals
must be filed in compliance with Title 14.

(5) Enforcement.

(A) Within Chelan County jurisdiction, a short-term rental must not operate without an approved
and valid short-term rental permit. Evidence of operation includes, but is not limited to,
advertising, online calendars showing availability, guest testimony, online reviews, rental
agreements, or receipts.

(B) Enforcement of this section will be in accordance with Title 16.

(6) Monitoring. The director shall report to the board of county commissioners on the status of
short-term rental regulation implementation annually at the time the existing short-term baseline
is reported per subsection (4)(D) of this section. The county may initiate a review or amendment
pursuant to Chapter 14.13.

(A) The director may utilize a commercial monitoring and/or response service to assist with
implementation of this chapter. (Res. 2021-120 (Att. A), 9/21/21; Res. 2021-95 (Att. A),
7/27/21).

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco14.html#14
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco16/Chelco16.html#16
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/ChelanCounty/#!/Chelco14/Chelco1413.html#14.13


Attachment B



THANK YOU
We have received your amendment submission. Please allow 1-3 business days for review. Please keep the Submittal ID as your receipt and for any future 
questions.  We will also send an email receipt to all contacts listed in the submittal. 

Submittal ID: 2024-S-7362
Submittal Date Time: 08/14/2024

Submittal Information

Jurisdiction Chelan County
Submittal Type 60-day Notice of Intent to Adopt Amendment
Amendment Type Development Regulation Amendment

Amendment Information

Brief Description
Proposed zoning code text amendment specific to section 11.88.290 of the Chelan County Code. The short-term rental regulation were developed through a 
2 year process starting in late 2019 and culminating in a August 2021 resolution. The BOCC committed to review the code regulations again after a full year or 
two of implementation. 

o Yes, this is a part of the 10-year periodic update schedule, required under RCW 36.70A.130.

Anticipated/Proposed Date of Adoption 01/01/2025

Categories

Submittal Category
Development Regulations

Attachments

Attachment Type File Name Upload Date
SEPA Materials DOC040.pdf 08/14/2024 02:55 PM
Development Regulation Amendment - Draft DOC041.pdf 08/14/2024 03:08 PM

Contact Information

Prefix Ms.
First Name Deanna
Last Name Walter
Title Community Development Director

Attachment C



Work (509) 667-6518
Cell
Email deannac.walter@co.chelan.wa.us

n Yes, I would like to be contacted for Technical Assistance.

Certification

n I certify that I am authorized to submit this Amendment for the Jurisdiction identified in this Submittal and all information provided is true and 
accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Full Name Jessica Thompson
Email jessicak.thompson@co.chelan.wa.us



 

1 

 
 
 
 
August 23, 2024 
 
Chelan County Planning Commission 
316 Washington Street, Suite 301 
Wenatchee WA 98801 
 

Re: August 28, 2024, Hearing for Proposed Amendments to the Short-Term Rental Provision 
in the Chelan County Code, specifically Section 11.88.290. 

 
Dear Honorable Planning Commissioners, 
 
Residents Coalition of Chelan County (RC3) is submitting the following comments on the 
proposed changes to Chelan County Code (CCC) pertaining to Short-Term Rentals (STRs) (CCC 
11.88.290) to be discussed at the August 28, 2024, Planning Commission hearing. 
 
As you know, Residents United for Neighbors (RUN), RC3’s predecessor organization, was deeply 
involved in the original promulgation of CCC 11.88.290, including having a board member on the 
Task Force associated with code development.  This process took over two years of intensive 
effort, reflecting the complexity and importance of the issues at hand.  Both sides of the issue, 
represented by RUN and the Short-Term Rental Association of Chelan County, made significant 
compromises during the final STR Task Force negotiations to achieve a comprehensive and 
balanced outcome.  The extensive deliberations and compromises made over this period were 
essential to develop a code that addresses the needs and concerns of all stakeholders.  These 
historical efforts must be respected. 
 
The following comments are provided for some of the specific code changes proposed.  RC3 is 
supportive of the other minor changes proposed that are not specifically addressed below. 
 
Comments on Specific Proposed Changes to the Code 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(2)(A)(i) – Description of Tier 1 Short-Term Rental 
 
The following changes to this section of the code are proposed: 
 



 

2 

 
RC3 strenuously objects to this proposed change.  Anyone other than a true owner would not 
have the same interests in ensuring that noise, parking, and other potentially-disruptive issues 
are immediately addressed.  The owner has an incentive to keep down nuisance issues while on-
site, while a manager does not necessarily.  And what would stop the owner from just naming 
one member of each group renting the STR from being the official manager for that stay?  It 
would result in renters policing themselves. 
 
Moreover, there is no way for the County to keep track of who is the designated manager or even 
assure that one is designated.  There could be turnover in renters every 30 days in the unit that is 
not designated as the STR. 
 
Tier 1 STRs must be owner-occupied. One of the aims in allowing owners to rent out accessory 
dwelling units was to provide them with a source of income to offset the high cost of housing 
and property taxes.  It was not intended to turn more of our housing stock into commercial 
investments. 
 
The proposed changes to this section would amount to allowing an unlimited number of STRs in 
residential neighborhoods and would destroy the whole intent of CCC 11.98.290 as stated in the 
Purpose section (CCC 11.88.290(1)). 
 
It is unconscionable that the County would change a key element of the code that took years of 
effort and compromises to develop. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(2)(B)(ii)(a) – Short-Term Rental Caps 
 
The cap on STRs within the Manson UGA is proposed to change from nine percent to six percent.   
Additionally, a desire to revisit/reassess all cap numbers is noted and highlighted in the 
proposed code text.  We have also heard that the Board of County Commissioners has actually 
proposed that the caps be entirely eliminated, which is hard to fathom. 
 
To put it bluntly, we have a housing crisis in Chelan County.  Our Valley Our Future conducted a 
regional housing survey in 2022.  Over 1,500 people responded, two thirds of whom were Chelan 
County residents.  About 90 percent of the residents who completed this survey cited housing 
availability and affordability as either an “extremely important” or an “important” issue for the 
community today. The County needs to take action to increase housing availability, not turn our 
existing housing units into STRs. 
 



 

3 

These cap numbers were negotiated at length during the initial promulgation of the STR code.  
Raising caps would eliminate a large part of the purpose of the code by further upsetting the 
balance between STRs and dwelling units available for residential use within residentially-zoned 
areas.  During the code development process, there was reliance on studies that examined 
appropriate cap percentages that were unlikely to adversely affect housing affordability and 
even the existing caps are above those percentages. 
 
In the marked up version of the code posted to the SEPA Register for this hearing, Chelan County 
Prosecuting Attorney Marcus Foster commented on the proposal to revisit/revise the STR density 
caps in this section of the code as follows: 
 

This could create an issue in litigation. These numbers were negotiated at length. So far the 
only testimony to change caps I know of is Manson wanting to DECREASE their cap. Raising 
caps eliminates a large part of the purpose of the code 

 
RC3 wholeheartedly agrees with Mr. Foster’s comments and is deeply disturbed that the County 
would even consider creating this legal issue while destroying the intended purpose of the code. 
RC3 is concerned about any wholesale effort to change these cap numbers and would 
strenuously object to any effort to increase or eliminate the cap values.  We believe that Chelan 
County residents feel the same way and would vigorously protest any such changes. 
 
We understand that the Board of County Commissioners has expressed that the nine percent 
cap for the Manson UGA (which is in addition to the six percent cap for the entire 98831 zip code) 
is somehow confusing.  Although we don’t understand the confusion, the proposed six percent 
cap for the Manson UGA has recently been supported by the Manson Community Council.  RC3 
also supports this change. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(2)(D)(i) – Minimum Lot Sizes 
 
A minimum lot size of 10 acres for Tier 2 STRs is proposed to be added to the code.  Given that 
the District Use Chart already allows Tier 2 STRs in AC zoning, but no minimum lot size for this 
zone is currently included in CCC 11.88.290, RC3 has no objections to this proposed change to 
the code. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(2)(E) – Existing STRs 
 
We would like additional explanation about the extensive deletions of code language in this 
section.  While we understand portions of this code are now obsolete, we would like assurances 
that all issues relating to the “grandfathered” STRs that were in operation prior to the adoption of 
this code have now been resolved. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(3)(A)(ii)) – Primary or Accessory Residence 
 
The following changes to this section of the code are proposed: 



 

4 

 
Since this section of the code applies to “All Short-Term Rentals”, it is unclear why a requirement 
that the owner occupy either the primary unit or the accessory unit is being suggested.  It is our 
understanding that the requirement for an owner to be onsite does not apply to Tier 2 or Tier 3 
STRs, even if there is a second dwelling unit.  The entire (3)(A) subsection applies to ownership 
and dwelling unit use as an STR, not owner occupancy. 
 
RC3 suggests that this addition makes no sense and should be removed or modified.  
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(3)(B) – Short-Term Rental Occupancy Limits 
 
The proposal to exclude children under 24 months of age from the occupancy limits is 
unacceptable. 
 
The first reason is a legal issue. Many of the STRs in the county are on septic systems. Such 
systems are carefully designed to accommodate expected wastewater discharge based on 
occupancy and estimates of wastewater that is generated on a per person basis. The occupancy 
is determined by assuming two persons per bedroom.  The discharge amount is assumed to be 
an average of 45 gallons per day per person and the resulting total is multiplied by 1.33 to 
account for surge capacity when the average daily flows may be exceeded. 
 
Average daily flow includes the wastewater generating activities in a building.  These activities 
typically include toilet flushing, showering and bathing, clothes washing and dishwashing, use 
of faucets, and other miscellaneous uses. 
 
To exclude children under 24 months means that one has to assume that there is no wastewater 
generated by children.  This is obviously a false assumption. Moreover, nowhere in the State 
regulations governing onsite sewage systems (Chapter 246-272A WAC) are children under two 
excluded from the calculation of occupancy and wastewater discharge for a residential 
structure.  
 
If the County were to exclude children under two, the design capacity of septic systems could be 
exceeded on a regular basis leading to failing systems. 
 
The second reason for objecting to the exclusion of children under two is that the result will be 
higher numbers of older children and adults in all STR tiers. Families and groups of renters tend 
to maximize the occupancy of STRs so that the per person cost is less.  As it is, the occupancies 



 

5 

in all Tiers greatly exceed the average occupancy of a typical single family home which is 2.55 
people.  The higher occupancy will put greater stress on septic systems and it uses up capacity 
in areas serviced by sewer. High occupancies will result in more visitors in residential 
neighborhoods and increase the risk of parking overflow, more noise, etc.  The caps on 
occupancy were negotiated by the STR Task Force and should not be changed. 
 
In sum, we believe there is no justification for exempting children under two from the occupancy 
limits. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(3)(O) – Payment of Taxes 
 
The following changes to this section of the code are proposed: 
 

 
RC3 agrees that this is a reasonable change and that STR owners should be able to provide 
documentation indicating that these taxes have been paid based on the method of payment 
used and/or income tax returns. 
 
Proposed Changes to CCC 11.98.290(4)(B)(iv)(b) – Permit Renewal Applications 
 
The following changes to this section of the code are proposed: 

 
The strikeout portion of these proposed changes near the end of the paragraph leaves a 
grammatically incorrect sentence.  It is not clear why this text needs changing in the first place, 
but as long as the intent is retained, RC3 has no objections to changes aimed at clarification or 
simplification. 
 
Closing 
 
As the Planning Commission is aware, a great deal of thought, effort, and compromise went into 
the development of CCC 11.98.290 in the years leading up to its promulgation in mid-2021.  
Clean-up of the code to clarify and provide further detail based on its implementation over the 
past few years, as well as removal of now-irrelevant portions of the code, is completely 



 

6 

appropriate.  However, changes to the code affecting the actual structure and restrictiveness of 
the code should only be undertaken to correct verified flaws in its effectiveness.  As noted in the 
comments herein, RC3 strongly objects to any proposed changes that reduce the protections 
which the code provides to residents and neighborhoods, and to changes which would weaken 
the intended protections, as stated in the Purpose section (CCC 11.88.290(1)); e.g.: 
 

Where excess rental units exist in residential communities, it has been shown to be 
detrimental to the affordable residential housing inventory and adversely affect the 
residential character of those neighborhoods. 

 
and 
 

The provisions of this chapter are necessary to promote the public health and safety by 
protecting year-round residents’ enjoyment of their homes and neighborhoods by minimizing 
the nuisance impact of short-term rentals on adjacent residences and by minimizing the 
detrimental impact of excessive short-term rentals on the affordable housing supply. 

 
Thanks for your serious consideration of our comments.  Please contact us with any questions at 
info@coalitionofchelancounty.org. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Board of Directors 
Residents Coalition of Chelan County (RC3) 
 
 
cc: Deanna Walter – Director, Chelan County Community Development 



August 27, 2024 
 
Short Term Rental Alliance of Chelan County 
PO Box 321 
Leavenworth, WA 98826 
Info@straccwa.org 
 
 
Comments for the Chelan County Planning Commission Meeting Aug 28, 2024 
 
 
Dear Commissioners, 
 
The Short Term Rental Alliance of Chelan County (STRACC) appreciates the opportunity to 
comment on the revisions to the STR code that are currently under consideration. Below, we 
briefly summarize our perspectives on several issues in the code, and we look forward to 
engaging further as this process proceeds. 
 
Excluding infants under 24 months from two-per-bedroom occupancy limit. 
STRACC welcomes this proposed change, which would make Chelan County’s code more 
consistent with that of peer jurisdictions and with the practices of leading booking platforms. 
Booking platforms including Airbnb do not count infants under 24 months as guests at the time 
of booking. As such, STR operators in Chelan County are placed in an awkward position of 
cancelling reservations, issuing refunds, and forcing guests to rebook elsewhere upon learning 
that a guest made a reservation that includes infants under 24 months. There is no evidence that 
this industry-standard practice of omitting infants from guest limits has caused problems with 
noise, parking, or septic systems in peer jurisdictions. 
 
Changing Tier 1 to include a manager or operator on site. 
This change would increase opportunities to develop parcels with a long-term renter in one unit 
serving as an on-site manager for an STR, incentivizing more rental housing development and 
allowing for creative arrangements for on-site managers to defray their rent costs. 
 
Language in 3(A)(ii) on page 29 of the PC’s August 28 packet seems to require owner to live on 
site, which contradicts earlier language opening up Tier 1’s to include owners, managers, and 
operators on site. It may be intended to apply only to parcels with multiple dwelling units, but 
could be interpreted to apply to any parcel. The intention of this passage should be clarified.  
 
Replacing self-certification with mandatory annual inspections. 
STRACC opposes this change, which will impose significant time and monetary costs on owners 
with little benefit. There is no evidence that there is currently a problem with false reporting or 
safety issues. Homeowners, STR operators, and insurance companies are well aware of liabilities 
and are adequately incentivized to address issues in self-certification. 
 
Requiring proof of paying sales tax and lodging tax annually at time of renewal. 



STRACC believes this change is unlikely to achieve any real benefit, but it is going to imposes 
compliance costs on operators. Most STR bookings are made through platforms such as VRBO 
and Airbnb, which collect and remit sales and lodging taxes on behalf of operators. Larger 
property management companies also take direct bookings, and are already required by state law 
to pay all applicable taxes. Requiring documentation of taxes paid will force owners to compile 
documentation from across multiple platforms, but is unlikely to increase tax collections. The 
Department of Revenue is competent to ensure collection of sales and lodging taxes, and 
enforcement is best left to them. 
 
Changes to parking rules. 
STRACC welcomes the removal of the requirement that parking not be located in a setback. This 
change will hold STRs to the same standards as other home owners in this regard. 
 
STRACC is concerned that the language defining “vehicles” may be too broad as written. It 
could be interpreted to count a truck towing a trailer with two personal watercraft on it as 4 
vehicles. 
 
STRACC encourages allowing property managers to establish site-specific parking limits, and to 
clearly communicate these to guests. A single vehicle can easily accommodate 4 or even 6 
guests. The requirement of one parking space per two guests encourages additional traffic on 
highways and roads in our county. 
 
Replacing discretionary hardship exemption for late permit renewal applications with 
progressive late fees and delayed issuance. 
  
This is a reasonable proposal that STRACC believes would be better than the status quo for both 
owners and CD staff. 
 
Changing cap percentages. 
STRACC recognizes that a cap on STRs was central to the Task Force agreement. However, it 
has become clear that STRs are not uniformly distributed around the county. STRACC 
recommends applying a 6% cap at the county level, rather than separately within ZIP codes and 
subareas. Under such a system, only the countywide STR percentage would be used to determine 
whether new STR permits can be issued. 
 
If ZIP code and subarea caps are retained, STRACC recommends increasing the caps in the 
Leavenworth ZIP code to 9% in return for reducing the Manson cap from 9% to 6%. This would 
bring the Leavenworth area cap into line with current STR counts, which represent more than a 
60% reduction from 2020 levels.  
 
Signage Rules 
STRACC believes the requirements for signs to be permanent, weatherproof, and reflective to be 
excessive. Most STR operators have spent hundreds of dollars per property on new signs since 
the code was adopted. Changing the requirements now will require them to spend even more to 
replace functional signs. 
 



Additional Land Use Permits 
4(C)(i) on p. 37 states that operating an STR requires an STR permit “and, in some cases, an 
additional land use permit.” It is not clear what additional permits this is referring to. STRACC 
would like to better understand the implications of this language for STR operators. 
 
Cleaning up language relating to existing nonconforming STRs. 
STRACC appreciates the effort to clean up the code by removing sections that are no longer 
relevant. However, before this is done, we would like to ensure that removal of this language 
cannot be later construed to remove the right to continued operation for existing nonconforming 
STRs that were in operations before the original code was adopted. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Board of Directors 
Short Term Rental Alliance of Chelan County 



2

From: Mark Kirshner <markkirshner@windermere.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 11:51 AM 
To: Tiffany Gering <Tiffany.Gering@CO.CHELAN.WA.US> 
Subject: RE: STR Regulations  
 
External Email Warning! This email originated from outside of Chelan County. 

 

Good morning Tiffany, 
Thank you for sending this my way. I read through it and I like a lot of the changes. I don’t see any changes that would 
materially change our situaƟon. Under the renewel secƟon of this proposal, I would like to add the following verbiage: 
 
annually by October 31st of the preceding year. 
(a) At their discreƟon the director may, upon showing of a hardship reason for applicant’s delay, accept permit renewal 
applicaƟons received aŌer October 31st but before December 31st of the same year and may assess double the normal 
fees for permiƫng, Annual renewal applicaƟons will be considered on Ɵme if received between September 1 – October 
31 each year. Renewal applicaƟons received between November 1 – November 30 will be considered late, and will pay a 
late fee of $--- in addiƟon to the renewal fee.  Renewal applicaƟons received between December 1 – December 31 will 
be considered late, and will pay a late fee of $--- in addiƟon to the renewal fee. Late renewals will be processed, but 
provided the short-term rental may not conƟnue operaƟon past December 31st unƟl the permit applicaƟon is approved 
and a permit issued, and renewal approval is not guaranteed. This applies to all permit Ɵer levels. 
 
Upon adopƟon of this change, the Planning Director shall noƟfy, within 60 days, previous STR permit holders who lost 
eligibility for a renewal because of their late submission, that they may re-apply for an STR permit under the framework 
of this change of regulaƟon. The applicant is responsible to meet all other requirements of the STR code. 
 

 
 
 



































































































































































































































 

1 

Recent Lodging Tax Trends for Chelan and Leavenworth 

 

There have been recent discussions about trends in lodging tax revenues for tourist areas such as 
Chelan, Leavenworth, and unincorporated Chelan County (which includes tourist areas surrounding 
Chelan and Leavenworth as well as all of Manson).  This document attempts to summarize the actual 
trends and context for the most recent lodging tax revenues in these areas. 

Data for this analysis were downloaded from the Washington Department of Revenue (DOR) 
website for Local Tax Distributions, Special Hotel/Motel Tax.  This is the three percent lodging tax 
that is charged by both Chelan and Leavenworth and the two percent tax charged in unincorporated 
Chelan County.  The tax distribution data are described by the DOR as follows: 

Local tax distributions are funds sent to cities, counties, and other local governments by the 
Office of the State Treasurer. The Department of Revenue (Department) collects the local taxes 
then sends them to the correct local jurisdiction. Each distribution represents local tax amounts 
paid to the Department in the previous month. (Example: March 2021 distribution generally 
includes the January 2021 return due in February 2021). Distributions are monthly; however, if a 
business does not pay in full, local jurisdictions receive partial distributions until the business 
pays the full amount. 

As stated above, the distributions are always two months behind when they are actually charged to 
the customer. 

Table 1 (attached) provides the calendar year Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions for Chelan, 
Leavenworth, and unincorporated Chelan County for 2019 through 2023.  As shown, even though 
2020 distributions were somewhat weakened by the COVID-19 pandemic (which started in early 
2020) for both Chelan and Leavenworth, there was a very large surge in revenues in 2021 
associated with the phenomenon of working remotely while lodging at a vacation destination (the 
so-called “workcation”).1  This led to outsized increases in Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions of 
45.8, 60.1, and 33.3 percent in 2021 for Chelan, Leavenworth, and unincorporated Chelan County, 
respectively. 

As the COVID-19 pandemic waned and tourist air travel began to revive, annual increases in Special 
Hotel/Motel Tax distributions moderated as expected.  Additionally, Chelan County implemented 
new regulations affecting short-term rentals in September of 2021, which likely decreased tax 
revenue growth in unincorporated Chelan County.  Even with these factors, Special Hotel/Motel Tax 
distributions increased from 2019 to 2023 by 56.3, 83.5, and 15.2 percent for Chelan, Leavenworth, 
and unincorporated Chelan County, respectively. 

Table 2 (attached) provides Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions for January through July for 
Chelan, Leavenworth, and unincorporated Chelan County for 2019 through 2024.  The effect of the 
pandemic in early 2020 is even more pronounced in these data due to the initial reaction of the 
public to not even take driving trips to other areas.  The rapid resurgence in the willingness of 

 
1 See for example https://hospitality.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/speaking-heads/rising-trend-of-
workcations-the-marriage-of-travel-and-remote-work/100845479. 

https://hospitality.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/speaking-heads/rising-trend-of-workcations-the-marriage-of-travel-and-remote-work/100845479
https://hospitality.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/speaking-heads/rising-trend-of-workcations-the-marriage-of-travel-and-remote-work/100845479


 

2 

tourists to drive to resort destinations is easily seen by comparing the first seven months of 2020 to 
the annual totals for 2020, where the comparisons to 2019 are much improved.  And the surges 
seen in 2021 were exceptional for the seven-month period examined in Table 2, even more so than 
the annual increases in Table 1. 

So, what is the trend for Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions so far in 2024?  Table 2 does show 
that through the first seven months Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions declined 19.7 and 4.6 
percent relative to the same period in 2023 for Chelan and Leavenworth, respectively, though only 
by 0.8 percent for unincorporated Chelan County.  Keeping in mind that Special Hotel/Motel Tax 
distributions are roughly two months behind when they are charged to customers, this decline in 
Chelan cannot be blamed on the Pioneer Fire, which likely affected Chelan, but not Leavenworth, 
starting in early June. 

The impact of the 2021 short-term rental code can likely be seen in the declines in Special 
Hotel/Motel Tax distributions in 2022 and 2023 as the code was implemented.  Short-term rentals 
operating illegally were forced to shut down and others may have simply chosen to no longer 
operate under the new code.  Based on the data in Table 2, it would appear that any declines in 
Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions associated with the new code in unincorporated Chelan 
County have now stabilized. 

Since the 2021 short-term rental code does not affect short-term rentals in Chelan or Leavenworth, 
it should have no impact on Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions in those cities.  And in fact, there 
are no such declines discernable in the 2022 and 2023 data. 

To some degree, the declines seen so far in 2024 could simply be an unwinding of the pandemic 
trend of people taking “workcations” and a return to a normal trendline.  Based solely on the data 
herein, it is not possible to say for sure what is causing the recent declines in Special Hotel/Motel 
Tax distributions, particularly in Chelan, where the decline is more pronounced. 

Table 3 (attached) compares the Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions from 2024 to those from 
2019 (prior to any impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic).  Over that five-year period, Special 
Hotel/Motel Tax distributions increased by 52.3, 83.5, and 16.6 percent for Chelan, Leavenworth, 
and unincorporated Chelan County, respectively.  So, in fact, Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions 
have increased in all areas analyzed over the five-year period ending in July 2024. 

It is impossible to know exactly what impact the 2021 short-term rental code has had on Special 
Hotel/Motel Tax distributions in unincorporated Chelan County based only on the numbers 
provided here.  We do know that even with the new code, Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions 
increased from 2019 (before the code and the pandemic) to July of 2024.  It is likely that these 
distributions would have grown even more without the code, but without more data we cannot say 
by how much. 

In exchange for whatever the loss in Special Hotel/Motel Tax distributions due to the short-term 
rental code might be, residents of Chelan County can expect in exchange more peaceful 
neighborhoods, lower housing costs, higher levels of volunteerism and community, better access 
to local amenities, and less traffic. 



Table 1. Summary of Annual  Special Hotel/Motel Taxes Distributed (3% Lodging Tax)

2019 2020 Change** 2021 Change** 2022 Change** 2023 Change**

Chelan $785,719 $814,042 3.6% $1,187,262 45.8% $1,210,811 2.0% $1,228,209 1.4%

Leavenworth $1,440,268 $1,266,720 -12.0% $2,027,550 60.1% $2,243,737 10.7% $2,587,824 15.3%

Chelan County* $1,031,355 $1,198,829 16.2% $1,598,143 33.3% $1,368,671 -14.4% $1,188,081 -13.2%

* Unincorporated Chelan County.
** Percent change from previous year.

Table 2. Summary of Special Hotel/Motel Taxes Distributed January - July (3% Lodging Tax)

2019 2020 Change** 2021 Change** 2022 Change** 2023 Change** 2024 Change**

Chelan $206,492 $136,253 -34.0% $359,005 163.5% $347,311 -3.3% $391,496 12.7% $314,466 -19.7%

Leavenworth $717,230 $576,556 -19.6% $1,000,214 73.5% $1,156,507 15.6% $1,380,205 19.3% $1,316,331 -4.6%

Chelan County* $423,745 $381,767 -9.9% $764,612 100.3% $641,987 -16.0% $498,033 -22.4% $494,200 -0.8%

* Unincorporated Chelan County.
** Percent change from previous year.

Table 3.  Percent Change in Special Hotel/Motel Taxes in 2024 vs. the Comparable Months in 2019

2019 2024 Change**

Chelan $206,492 $314,466 52.3%

Leavenworth $717,230 $1,316,331 83.5%

Chelan County* $423,745 $494,200 16.6%

* Unincorporated Chelan County.
** Percent change between 2019 and 2024.

City

Amount Distributed for Calendar Year

City

Amount Distributed for Jan - Jul for Each Year

City

Amount Distributed for Jan - Jul
for Each Year




	09 September 12 PC Agenda Packet
	09 September 12 PC Agenda.pdf
	Meeting Agenda
	II. Public Comment Period
	Next Regular Meeting
	September 25, 2024 at 6:30 PM



	Contents
	09 September 12 PC Agenda Packet
	PC Staff Report STR Code Changes_
	2024 STR proposed text amendment 8.19.24
	11.88.290 Short-term rental regulations.

	ZTA 24-325 - DNS 8.14.24
	ZTA 24-325 - Submittal-Receipt-Email-2024-S-7362
	STR comments as of 9.3.24 2.54pm.pdf
	STR public COMMENTS - 1st round 8.28 
	RC3 Letter to PC for Aug 28 Hearing (8_23_24)
	STRACC draft comments(1)
	Kirshner comment - Aug. 28th PC
	STR COMMENTS  Aug. 28th PC meeting (2)
	DOC045

	STR comments Aug 29 - Sept 3rd

	August-28-Planning-Commission-Minutes w attachments.pdf
	August-28-Planning-Commission-Minutes
	Minutes:
	None
	New Business
	Commissioner Warren asked for more details about the issue that was brought up and led to the modifications to the STR code.
	Public Hearing Closed
	Commissioners review and discuss thoughts on the proposed changes for Title 11.
	Workshop continued to September 12th at 6:30 p.m.
	Discussion at the Chair’s Discretion:
	ADJOURNMENT
	All Planning Commission meetings and hearings are open to the public

	Minutes attachment - Public comment - Sean Lynn



